
MINUTES OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
March 8, 2010 

 
 
The Special Workshop meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairman Mark 
Moore at 7:03 p.m. at the Village Hall. 
 
Members present:  Chairman Mark Moore, Scott Adams, William Cotey, Terry Howard, Walter 
Oakley, and Andy Robinson. 
 
Members absent:  Robert Guarnaccio. 
 
A quorum was established. 
 
Village Staff present: John Spoden, Director of Community Development; David Smith, Senior 
Planner; Kevin Bowens, Village Administrator; James Zych, Director of Parks and Recreation; 
Police Chief Pat Carey; Fire Department Chief Rich Carani; and John Heinz, Director of Public 
Works. 
 
Commissioner Robinson moved, seconded by Commissioner Cotey, to approve the February 8, 
2010, Plan Commission meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 6 - 0. 
 
WORKSHOP DISCUSSION: 
 
Mr. John Spoden, Director of Community Development, introduced to the Plan Commission other 
Village Department Heads present at the meeting, including James Zych, Director of Parks and 
Recreation; Police Chief Pat Carey; Fire Department Chief Rich Carani; and John Heinz, Director of 
Public Works. 
 
Mr. James Zych, Director of Parks and Recreation, presented various elements of the Parks and 
Recreation Department.  He stated that they have added one park 2 years ago for the Cambridge 
Knoll subdivision.  He stated that one of the most often heard concerns is not enough open space for 
sports activities.  He stated that the regional and neighborhood parks are in good shape.  He stated 
that there are parks facilities for various team sports.  He stated that the trend in the Parks and 
Recreation industry is to convert fields from natural to artificial turf.  He stated that the Lake County 
Forest Preserve District has acted as an extension to the Village of Libertyville Parks and Recreation 
Department.  He stated that Butler Lake Band Shell and the Sunrise Rotary Park can be modified to 
accent Main Street. 
 
Commissioner Cotey asked if there can be a neighborhood park established for the School Street 
development.  Mr. Spoden stated that the School Street planned development planned to use every 
lot for a residential unit.  He stated that there is a need to explore how to accommodate that area for 
park space. 
 



Minutes of the March 8, 2010 Plan Commission Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Commissioner Cotey asked what the status is for the Trimm property.  Mr. Spoden stated that the 
Trimm property has been quiet. 
 
Chairman Moore asked what the status is for the Sports Complex property.  Mr. Zych stated that the 
corner should be sold, but has been worried about giving up the Golf Learning Center.  He stated that 
the Sports Complex building itself has been doing well.  He stated that all demographics are using 
the LSC, but the GLC is being studied at this time for alternative uses. 
 
Chairman Moore stated that a strong tax base should be considered when deciding what to do with 
the GLC area. 
 
Mr. Spoden stated that consideration has been given to rezoning the property to C-3, General 
Commercial District which would mirror the corner directly south of the Sports Complex site. 
 
Mr. Kevin Bowens, Village Administrator, stated that there has been some interest from Senior 
Housing developers, but this site would be too isolated from valuable amenities. 
 
Commissioner Robinson asked if the area is connected to a bike path.  Mr. John Heinz, Director of 
Public Works, stated that a draft ordinance that incorporates elements of a bike path task force will 
be submitted to the Village Board shortly. 
 
Chairman Moore asked what the status is of the Riverside Park area.  Mr. Zych stated that the 
neighborhood pool should remain. 
 
Commissioner Cotey asked if any consideration has been given to changing the Riverside Golf 
Course to alternative sports fields.  Mr. Zych stated that any changes to existing park or sports fields 
will depend upon how it impacts the revenues.  He stated that floods in recent years have hampered 
some of the revenues. 
 
Commissioner Adams asked if there are any agreements established between the school districts and 
the Village Park and Recreation Department for any cooperative use opportunities.  Mr. Zych stated 
that the Village has been quite generous with sharing some of its park land with the school districts. 
 
Chief Rich Carani, Fire Department, discussed the role of the Fire Department and the geographical 
area which the Fire Department covers or serves.  He stated that the Fire District includes Mettawa, 
Green Oaks, certain unincorporated areas, as well as Libertyville.  He stated that there will be a need 
for a new Fire Station to the north, east of Route 45.  He stated that the Village of Grayslake is 
planning a new Fire Station near Route 60 and Peterson Road. 
 
Commissioner Cotey asked for clarification on the ideal location for the new Fire Station.  Chief 
Carani stated that it is near Route 45 and Peterson Road.  He stated that it would provide easy access 
to the future Route 53 extension.  He stated that the Fire Department studies response time versus a 
circular planning area approach. 
 



Minutes of the March 8, 2010 Plan Commission Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Commissioner Cotey asked what criteria is included when deciding a new Fire Station.  Chief Carani 
stated that response time is the essential factor when deciding for a new Fire Station. 
 
Commissioner Howard stated that the 33 acres of the Mundelein Seminary may change to residential 
and asked how that may influence the Fire Department’s future planning decisions.  Chief Carani 
stated that area may have a 4 to 5 minute response time to Libertyville Fire Station #1.  He stated that 
consideration should be given to applying impact fees to new residential development of substantial 
size. 
 
Police Chief Pat Carey, Libertyville Police Department, discussed the Police Department’s role in the 
Village of Libertyville.  He stated that there is a higher demand for police service in residential and 
commercial areas.  He stated that there may be a need to add additional service to cover the 
northwest area of the Village if it goes commercial, this may include adding another officer to the 
street as the department is currently stretched. 
 
Commissioner Cotey asked if there currently is need for another Police Station.  Chief Carey stated 
that need for a new station is not indicated. 
 
Chief Carani asked if a Police substation would be considered in the northwest area.  Chief Carey 
stated that it would have to be secure. 
 
Commissioner Cotey asked about a Police Station at the northwest Metra train station.  Chief Carey 
stated that the biggest demand is related to auto related crimes. 
 
Commissioner Cotey stated that Police and Fire services appear to be maxed out. 
 
Chairman Moore asked where the biggest problem traffic areas are located.  Chief Carani stated that 
several places along Milwaukee Avenue have had traffic-related accidents. 
 
Mr. Heinz stated that there are plans in place to address street widening along Milwaukee Avenue 
north of Rt. 137. 
 
Chief Carani stated that there has been a slight decrease in call volumes in 2009. 
 
Chief Carey stated that ten (10%) percent of the Police calls are traffic related.  He stated that near 
the high school is the biggest traffic concern for the Police Department. 
 
Commissioner Cotey stated that he is anticipating the future extensions of Route 53 and the 
advantages that it will bring to the Village. 
 
Chief Carey stated the County Sheriff or the State Police would probably be the first responders to 
any calls along the Route 53 expressway. 
 



Minutes of the March 8, 2010 Plan Commission Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 
 
Chief Carani stated that the Fire Department does respond to calls along the expressway arterial 
roads. 
 
Chief Carey stated that there has been an upswing in burglaries at the ramps of the expressways. 
 
Commissioner Cotey stated that there needs to be an annexation strategy. 
 
Mr. Heinz stated that the Engineering Division’s facility planning area line cuts through the 
northwest area of the Village near where the Rt. 53 extension is planned.  He stated that there are 
currently 19 lift stations in the Village.  He stated that consideration should be given to the treatment 
plants capacity when new development comes in the northwest corridor. 
 
Commissioner Howard asked how close to the next EPA review is the Village.  Mr. Heinz stated that 
they are still 5 years out. 
 
Commissioner Oakley moved and Commissioner Robinson seconded a motion to adjourn. 
 
Motion carried 6 - 0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 


